

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

# ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

One Hundred and Second Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with  
the Revised Statutes of 1964, Title 3, Section 164, Subsection 6.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL

AUGUSTA, MAINE

1965

---

---

PUBLIC LAWS  
OF THE  
STATE OF MAINE  
AS PASSED BY THE  
One Hundred and Second Legislature  
1965

---

---

**'1. Cost of project.** "Cost of project" shall mean the cost or fair market value of ~~construction~~ real estate improvements, lands, property rights, easement, franchises, financing charges, interest, engineering and legal services, plans, specifications, surveys, cost estimates, studies and other expenses as may be necessary or incident to the development, construction, financing and placing in operation of an industrial project.'

Effective September 3, 1965

## Chapter 143

### AN ACT Clarifying the Offense of Procuring Liquor for Certain Persons.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**R. S., T. 28, § 1058, amended.** Section 1058 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

#### **'§ 1058. Furnishing liquor to certain persons prohibited**

Whoever knowingly procures or in any way aids or assists in procuring liquor or whoever furnishes, gives or delivers liquor to a minor who may not legally purchase liquor for himself or for any intoxicated person, pauper, mentally ill person or person of known intemperate habits, except that this provision shall not apply to liquor served to a minor in the home **in the presence of a parent or guardian**, shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$200 or by imprisonment for not more than 11 months, or by both.'

Effective September 3, 1965

## Chapter 144

### AN ACT Relating to Malt Liquor Licenses.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Sec. 1. R. S., T. 28, § 2, sub-§ 22-A, additional.** Section 2 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended by adding a new subsection 22-A, to read as follows:

**'22-A. Vessel.** "Vessel" shall mean a craft used for navigation of the water, any ship, vessel or boat of any kind, licensed for carrying not less than 50 passengers under the requirements of the Public Utilities Commission or the United States Coast Guard, and propelled by steam or otherwise and used only on waters other than inland waters.'

**Sec. 2. R. S., T. 28, § 753, amended.** Section 753 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

#### **'§ 753. Public service corporations**

Licenses for the sale of malt liquor by railroad companies, pullman companies or ~~steamboat~~ vessel companies, in their cars or boats, under such regula-

tions as the commission may prescribe, may be issued by the commission upon a written application in such form as they may prescribe, and upon payment of the fee of \$100 per year, covering all ~~steamboats~~ and cars supplying food operated by any one owner **and \$100 per year for each vessel.**'

**Sec. 3. R. S., T. 28, § 801, amended.** The first sentence of section 801 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'Licenses for the sale of spirituous and vinous liquor **and malt liquor** to be consumed on the premises where sold may be issued to clubs and to bona fide hotels, restaurants, ~~steamboats~~ vessels and railroad dining cars on payment of the fees provided; subject to the condition that the application therefor be approved by the municipal officers of the town or city in which such intended licensee, if operating a club, restaurant or hotel, is operating the same, and if said hotel, restaurant or club is located in an unorganized place said application shall be approved by the county commissioners of the county, within which such unorganized place is located, and subject to the further condition that licenses issued to restaurants, except class A restaurants, shall be limited to malt liquor or wine.'

**Sec. 4. R. S., T. 28, § 802, amended.** Section 802 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

**'§ 802. Licenses for railroad and vessel corporations; restrictions**

A public service spirituous and vinous liquor **and malt liquor** license granted to any railroad corporation operating dining cars within the State shall authorize the holder thereof to sell spirituous and vinous liquors **and malt liquor** in such cars only after leaving and before reaching the terminal stops, to be consumed in such cars. Such licenses shall be good throughout the State.

Such license granted to any ~~steamboat~~ vessel corporation operating boats within the State shall authorize the holder thereof to sell spirituous and vinous liquors **and malt liquor** in such boats on which food is served only after leaving and before reaching ports within the State.

**Such licenses shall be under such rules and regulations as the commission may prescribe.'**

**Sec. 5. R. S., T. 28, § 804, amended.** Section 804 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

**'§ 804. Public service corporations**

A public service spirituous and vinous liquor **and malt liquor** license shall not be issued to any railroad or ~~steamship~~ vessel company until the applicant therefor has filed with the commission a surety bond similar in form and amount to that required to be filed by a hotel or club licensee, except that in the case of a railroad company or ~~steamship~~ vessel company, one bond shall cover every dining car or ~~steamboat~~ vessel of such company.'